
1 
 
 
 
 

Village of Geneseo         June 27, 2012 
Planning Board        Regular Meeting  
 
Members Present:     Other Village Representatives Present: 
David Woods, Chair      Code Enforcement Officer Ron Maxwell 
Matt Griffo       Attorney J. Thomas Reynolds 
Claren Kruppner           
Susan Richardson       
 
Applicants Present: 
Mike McCarthy, Byrne Dairy 
Eric Dolan, Attorney, 18 Wadsworth Street – Dotterweich 
Paul & Jennifer Dotterweich, Owners, 18 Wadsworth Street 
Josh Williams, Genesee Sun 
Tad Rowley, Sign Shop, sign maker for Notebook Tek 
 
Public Present: 
Rodney & Julie Belfiore, 16 Wadsworth Street 
 
1.  Meeting Opened: 
 Chair Woods opened the meeting at 4:30pm. 
 
2.  Review of Minutes: 
 The May 16, 2012 work session minutes were reviewed.  The May 23, 2012 regular meeting 
minutes were reviewed.  The June 20, 2012 work session minutes were reviewed.  M. Griffo moved to 
approve the minutes with an amendment to the May 23, 2012 regular meeting minutes.  C. Kruppner 
seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
  
3.  Code Enforcement Office: 
 May 2012      
 Building Permits     9     
 Rental Housing   0     
 Sign Permits    3     
 Fire Inspections   0     
 Violations    7 
 Alarm Permits   1 
 Temporary Structures (Tents) 1 
 
 CEO Maxwell stated that they started working on fire inspections in June and have been 
keeping up with property maintenance complaints.  Rental Housing inspections will be started soon.   
 
4.  Town Planning Board Update – David Woods: 
 Chair Woods reported that the Town Planning Board cancelled their last meeting due to lack of 
any pressing business.   
 
 Chair Woods reported that in terms of the revisions to Town Zoning Law the Town has decided 
to hold off on sending out requests for proposals because they have been contacted by Ag & Markets 



2 
 
 
 
 

to see if they are still interested in an Environmental Protection Fund Grant for the preparation of an 
Agricultural and Farmland Protection Plan. The Town has decided that they are interested but some 
of that grant relates to and recommends changes be made to the Zoning Code that relates to farm land 
and agricultural protection, therefore, the timetable to send out the request for proposals has been 
moved back.   
 
 Chair Woods asked if the Board has had a chance to review the proposed revisions to the 
Village Code.  Discussion followed and it was agreed that the Planning Board as a group would not be 
making any comments regarding the revisions.   
 
5.  Livingston County Planning Board Update – David Matthews: 
 Chair Woods reported that David Matthews, the Village’s Livingston County Planning Board 
Representative had sent an email stating that there was nothing to report.   
 
6.  Byrne Dairy – 39 East South Street – Alteration to Gas Canopy Graphics: 
 Mike McCarthy, Real Estate Manager for Byrne Dairy appeared before the Board for a second 
time with proposed changes to the canopy graphics.  They are rebranding all of their stores and are 
proposing to go to a more natural green color canopy similar to the roof color which should help the 
canopy blend in more.  In December of 2009 the Zoning Board of Appeals granted an area variance 
for the Byrne Dairy logo (cow) and Byrne Dairy lettering for only the east and west sides of the canopy 
for a total of 16 square feet.   
 At this time, Byrne Dairy is proposing to change the logo (cow) and lettering with the new 
square footage being 27.74 square feet.    The lettering “DIESEL” was never approved but just showed 
up and at this time, they are proposing to remove that lettering and replace with the words:  “Since 
1933” on two sides equaling 3.3 square feet per side for a total of 6.6 square feet.  They are also 
proposing a band around the entire perimeter of the canopy which states:  “Byrne Dairy Since 1933” 
at a total of 40.9 square feet.  This would be a grand total of 75.2 square feet.   The Board asked if this 
was a change from what was presented in May.  Mr. McCarthy stated that it was not.   
 The Board also asked if any of the other items discussed in May had been addressed.   
Mr. McCarthy stated that they hope to have the dead plantings replaced by next week.  However, 
regarding deliveries, he stated that he had spoken with the manager and all deliveries are being made 
at off peak hours.  The Board was still concerned about this as they thought that all deliveries were to 
be made during the night.  Mr. McCarthy stated that after speaking with Code Enforcement Officer 
Dean O’Keefe and Christian Brunelle, Vice President of Store Development for Byrne Dairy, they were 
of the understanding that all deliveries were to be made during off peak times which is the case.   
 Regarding fencing the HVAC (Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning) units, it is of the 
understanding that they should not be shielded to allow for proper air flow.  The Board did not agree 
with this, but Mr. McCarthy stated that as they appear is how they were approved as per the site plan.   
 Chair Woods asked if any consideration had been taken to eliminating the band around the 
entire canopy stating “Byrne Dairy Since 1933” as that would reduce the request to the Zoning Board 
of Appeals.  Mr. McCarthy stated that they would rather wait and go in front of the ZBA as is.  Chair 
Woods asked what they would be requesting from the Zoning Board of Appeals.  CEO Maxwell stated 
that they would be requesting an additional area variance of 59.24 square feet.   
 Chair Woods stated that unless or until the Zoning Board of Appeals makes a decision, the 
Planning Board could not take any action.  However, M. Griffo moved to make a negative 
recommendation to the Zoning Board of Appeals on the proposed signage as it is requested today.  
Chair Woods asked if there was a second.  Hearing none, the motion failed due to a lack for a second.   



3 
 
 
 
 

 Chair Woods asked if there was any other discussion or a different motion.  S. Richardson 
moved to send the proposal to the Zoning Board of Appeals as it stands today with the comment that 
the proposed colors are okay but that the Planning Board is not taking a position on the amount of 
square footage requested.  C. Kruppner seconded the motion.  Chair Woods asked if there was any 
further discussion.  M. Griffo stated that he believes that the contrast will be much more than what it 
currently is going from a white canopy to a green canopy, especially during the day.  He also stated 
that he believes that the square footage being requested is excessive but that is for the ZBA to 
determine.  Chair Woods stated that no action would be needed regarding SEQR since the previous 
SEQR action was still applicable.  With no further discussion, the vote was as follows:  D. Woods – 
Aye, M. Griffo – Nay, S. Richardson – Aye and C. Kruppner – Aye.  The motion passed.   
  
7.  Genesee Sun - Sign – Josh Williams – 75 Main Street: 
 Josh Williams, Publisher for the Genesee Sun appeared before the Board with a sign permit 
application.  Mr. Williams explained that he has rented out the front left half of the store front at  
75 Main Street.  The Genesee Sun is an online news site and he plans to start holding pod casts from 
the 75 Main Street location with Main Street being the backdrop.  The sign is 3’ long by 1’ high made 
from high density urethane.  The Board asked if the sign would be lit.  Mr. Williams stated that it 
would not be.  Chair Woods asked if Mr. Williams was aware of the Village’s sign grant program.   
Mr. Williams stated that he was and that he would be coming forward with that application in the 
near future but wants to move forward with the sign as soon possible.  The Board wondered if the 
backdrop that the new sign would be placed on would be painted so that the outline of the previous 
tenants sign was not visible.  Mr. Williams stated that yes they would be painting that.  With no 
further discussion, M. Griffo moved to approve the sign as presented.  S. Richardson seconded the 
motion.  There was no further discussion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 
8.  Notebook Tek – Sign – 94 Main Street Suite 203 –  
Sign Maker:  Tad Rowley – The Sign Shop: 
 Tad Rowley, sign maker presented the Board with a sign permit application for the Notebook 
Tek at 94 Main Street.  Mr. Rowley stated that the sign is made up of ½” aluminum letters with a 
black matte finish, which he showed the Board a sample of.   S. Richardson asked if the lettering on 
the windows was inside the window or outside the window.  Mr. Rowley stated that the window 
lettering is located on the outside of the window.  CEO Maxwell stated that if that is the case it would 
count against the overall square footage of signage allowed, but if it was on the inside it would not.  
CEO Maxwell also stated that each window sign would count as one sign and only two signs are 
allowed.   Therefore, Chair Woods stated a variance would need to be requested and the Planning 
Board could not act upon the application.  Mr. Rowley stated that he would need to discuss this with 
his client, noting that having vinyl lettering on the outside of the window is much more visible then 
having it on the inside of the window.  Discussion followed and the Board and Mr. Rowley agreed to 
move forward with the sign permit application as it has been presented with the understanding that 
the outside window lettering would either be removed or moved to the inside of the window.  With no 
further discussion, M. Griffo moved to approve the sign permit application as presented noting that 
the vinyl window lettering on the outside of the window will be either moved to the inside of the 
windows or completely removed.  S. Richardson seconded the motion.  There was no further 
discussion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 
 
 



4 
 
 
 
 

9.  Dotterweich – 18 Wadsworth Street – Special Use Permit Request –  
Single Family to Two Family: 
 Chair Woods stated that the Village is in receipt of Acting Supreme Court Judge  
Robert B. Wiggins decision dated March 22, 2012 and received by the Village on June 5, 2012 (as 
attached).  Attorney Reynolds stated that the Planning Board has two options.  One option is to appeal 
the Judge’s decision and the other option is to grant the special use permit with or without conditions.   
 Attorney Reynolds stated that he had a brief discussion with Attorney Dolan who represents 
that Dotterweich’s regarding the Planning Board’s options and it was his sense that the Board wanted 
to approve the special use permit with some conditions, including a time limit.  Attorney Reynolds 
stated that Attorney Dolan and his clients were comfortable with this decision.       
 Chair Woods also explained that most typically special use permits are issued for a one year 
time period but the Planning Board felt given the nature of this application and the possible necessity 
for physically improvements to the property the Board has agreed to a two year time period.   
 The Board stated that any existing lighting and newly installed lighting should be shielded 
from the neighboring properties.  Paul Dotterweich commented that he does not have a problem with 
this but is wondering about the property to the south that has light spillage onto his property.  Chair 
Woods stated that the Planning Board can only act upon what is in front of them and when and if that 
property ever comes before the Board for anything, lighting could be discussed then.     
 The Board also stated that a condition of approval will be to retain eight parking spaces, one for 
each possible tenant.  Attorney Dolan stated that his clients did not have a problem with this.  Chair 
Woods also stated that the Board had discussed refuse disposal, but does not feel that this would 
require a separate condition of the special use permit.  Mr. Dotterweich asked what would be 
required.  CEO Maxwell stated and the Board agreed that an adequate amount of containers must be 
provided to handle all the refuse which will be generated.  Mr. Dotterweich did not have a concern 
with this.   
 However, Mr. Dotterweich stated that he is concerned with investing money into the property 
to convert the property from a single family to a two family and then not getting approved again when 
the permit expires.  Attorney Reynolds noted that he does not foresee any issues.    
 C. Kruppner wondered if the meeting could be opened up for comments from the public.  Chair 
Woods stated that this is not a public hearing, but if members of the public would like to speak they 
would be allowed to do so.  The Board did not have a problem with this.  Julie and Rodney Belfiore 
who reside at 16 Wadsworth Street, which is the house located to the north of 18 Wadsworth Street 
stated that they are here in support of the Dotterweich’s special use permit request,  noting that they 
may wish to proceed with their special use permit application they had applied for.   
 Chair Woods asked if there were any further comments.  M. Griffo stated that he feels that 
allowing this use will greatly impact the neighbors and surrounding community.  Other Board 
members agreed with this statement.    
 Jennifer Dotterweich stated that they have had four tenants living in the house through this 
whole process and there have been no issues.  She also noted that she and her husband are very strict 
on who they will rent to.  Mr. Dotterweich commented that as they move forward they hope to 
maintain the integrity of the home as much as possible.   
 At this time, the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) Short Environmental 
Assessment Form was reviewed for this project.  With no further discussion, M. Griffo moved to grant 
this proposal a negative declaration based on the information and analysis obtained and any 
supporting documentation on file that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse 
environmental impacts.  C. Kruppner seconded the motion and the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 With no further discussion, S. Richardson moved the following with second from C. Kruppner: 



5 
 
 
 
 

 
Whereas, a petition, was presented to the Village Planning Board (the “Village”) of the Village of 
Geneseo, New York (the “Planning Board”) on April 13, 2011, for a special use permit for  
18 Wadsworth Street, in the Village of Geneseo, New York; said building being described in said 
petition, which is annexed hereto as Exhibit A, and 
 
Whereas, a two-family dwelling was a use permitted by special use permit in the R-2 Residential 
District in Village of Geneseo; and 
 
Whereas, an application has been submitted to the Planning Board for a special use permit for a  
two-family dwelling at 18 Wadsworth Street; and 
 
Whereas, former Section 130.20-D.(1) of the Village Code specified the condition which must be met 
in order for the Planning Board to grant a permit for a special use; and 
 
Whereas, by Decision and Order dated March 22, 2012, this Board has been directed to grant said 
application; and 
 
Whereas, the Board hereby grants that special use permit, for a period of two years, subject 
to the following: 
 1. Retention by the applicant of the 8 parking spaces for tenant vehicles; 
 2. Adequate shielding of any exterior lighting from adjoining residences; 
 
Chair Woods asked if there was any further discussion.  M. Griffo stated that he is still concerned 
about the character of the neighborhood and non-owner occupied rental unit.  With no further 
discussion, the motion passed with ayes from all.   
 
10.  Calm Dental – Sign – 107 Main Street: 
 Chair Woods stated that he had spoken with Code Enforcement Officer Dean O’Keefe earlier in 
the day regarding a sign permit application for Calm Dental which will be opening an office in the rear 
of 107 Main Street.  CEO Maxwell stated that they are requesting a 6’ X 8’ or 48 square foot sign.  He 
explained that since they do not have any building frontage, they are not allowed a sign on the front of 
the building.  Therefore, after speaking with Mayor Hatheway they decided that they would apply the 
2nd story sign regulations to this business, which would allow them to have a sign that does not exceed 
3 square feet in size.   
 CEO Maxwell explained that the tenant is not happy with this therefore, would like to apply to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals for a variance, but would need approval from the Planning Board first for 
aesthetics.  The Board asked where this sign would be located.  CEO Maxwell stated that he believes 
they are requesting the sign to be placed over The Cuttery window.   M. Griffo was concerned with the 
placement of the sign and the stark white color of the sign.  He wondered if the phone number needed 
to be on the sign.  Chair Woods believed that the Board should be looking at the sign for design not 
content.  M. Griffo suggested that smaller letters could be used and then they could also reduce the 
size of the sign.  
 Chair Woods believed that the Planning Board had two options, one being to do nothing and 
wait to see what the Zoning Board of Appeals does at which time they would then need to come back 
to the Planning Board or pass the application on to the Zoning Board of Appeals with a negative 
recommendation.  C. Kruppner wondered if the Planning Board could just hold off and request that 



6 
 
 
 
 

they appear before the Planning Board next month, as it would be easier if they were here to speak to.  
The Board agreed.  CEO Maxwell stated that he would relay this information.   
 
11.  Old Business: 
 After reviewing the minutes for The Village Tavern at 137 Center Street regarding lighting and 
dumpster enclosures, the Board asked CEO Maxwell to speak with the owner regarding shielding the 
lights from the street and what their plans are to enclose the dumpsters.  CEO Maxwell stated that he 
will look into the matter. 
 
12.  Meeting Closed: 
 M. Griffo moved to close the meeting at 6:12pm, with second from C. Kruppner.  The motion 
passed with ayes from all.   
 
Aprile S. Mack, Secretary 
 
 
 


